

**2001 DRAFTING REQUEST**

**Senate Amendment (SA-SSA1-SB55)**

Received: 06/15/2001

Received By: mlief

Wanted: As time permits

Identical to LRB:

For: Senate Democratic Caucus

By/Representing: Keckhaver

This file may be shown to any legislator: NO

Drafter: mlief

May Contact:

Addl. Drafters:

Subject: Higher Education - UW System

Extra Copies: PG

Submit via email: NO

Requester's email:

---

**Pre Topic:**

SDC:.....Keckhaver - CN1065,

---

**Topic:**

Funding increases for WHEG and TG

---

**Instructions:**

See Attached

---

**Drafting History:**

<u>Vers.</u>	<u>Drafted</u>	<u>Reviewed</u>	<u>Typed</u>	<u>Proofed</u>	<u>Submitted</u>	<u>Jacketed</u>	<u>Required</u>
/?	mlief 06/16/2001	wjackson 06/16/2001		_____			
/1			haugeca 06/16/2001	_____	lrb_docadmin 06/16/2001		

FE Sent For:

**2001 DRAFTING REQUEST**

**Senate Amendment (SA-SSA1-SB55)**

Received: **06/15/2001**

Received By: **mlief**

Wanted: **As time permits**

Identical to LRB:

For: **Senate Democratic Caucus**

By/Representing: **Keckhaver**

This file may be shown to any legislator: **NO**

Drafter: **mlief**

May Contact:

Addl. Drafters:

Subject: **Higher Education - UW System**

Extra Copies: **PG**

Submit via email: **NO**

Requester's email:

---

**Pre Topic:**

SDC:.....Keckhaver - CN1065,

---

**Topic:**

Funding increases for WHEG and TG

---

**Instructions:**

See Attached

---

**Drafting History:**

<u>Vers.</u>	<u>Drafted</u>	<u>Reviewed</u>	<u>Typed</u>	<u>Proofed</u>	<u>Submitted</u>	<u>Jacketed</u>	<u>Required</u>
1?	mlief	11 WLj 6/15	ck 6-16	ck 6-16			

FE Sent For:

<END>

# Agency: Higher Educational Aids Board

caucus number 1065

duplicate flag: y  
duplicate with: 3016

Other reference numbers: Paper 531	LFB Sum #:
Alt A2g, C2c,	
bill number/amendment number:	
LRB draft #	LRB P-draft:

description:

**other notes**

Description2: Adopt Alt A2g of paper 531, providing a 7% annual funding increase for the Wisconsin Higher Education Grant (WHEG) program for UW students. This program provides need-based grants to resident undergraduates enrolled at UW campuses, Wisconsin Technical College System institutions, and tribal colleges. Adopt Alt C2c which provides a 3% increase in funding for the Tuition Grant Program. Adopt a 4.5% increase in funding for the WHEG program for WTCS students under Alt B2.

drafting instructions: Adopt Alt. A2g, Alt C2c, and a 4.5% increase under Alt B2.

more instructions:

caucus number 5021

duplicate flag:  
duplicate with:

Other reference numbers:	LFB Sum #:
bill number/amendment number:	
LRB draft #	LRB P-draft:

description: Incorporate the provisions of the Independent Living Assistive Technology Proposal from the Wisconsin Coalition of Independent Living Centers.

**other notes**

Description2: Incorporate the provisions of the Independent Living Assistive Technology Proposal from the Wisconsin Coalition of Independent Living Centers. Funding is provided on a one-time basis, funded by deleting funds for the following: \$88,300 in 01-02 and \$80,000 in 02-03 provided to HEAB to upgrade agency technology (Item 2 in paper 146); \$250,000 in 01-02 from the UW System related to establishing a not-for-profit Learning Innovations organization (Item 12 in paper 146); and \$500,000 to the UW System for developing wireless networking systems (Item 14 in paper 146).

drafting instructions:

more instructions:

Agency: **Higher Educational Aids Board**

Number of Amendments: 2

4N1065

Adopt Alternative A2g to paper 531, providing a 7% annual funding increase for the WHEG Program for UW students.

IN



## **Legislative Fiscal Bureau**

One East Main, Suite 301 - Madison, WI 53703 - (608) 266-3847 • Fax: (608) 267-6873

May 16, 2001

Joint Committee on Finance

Paper #531

### **Wisconsin Higher Education Grant and Tuition Grant Programs (HEAB)**

---

#### **CURRENT LAW**

The Wisconsin higher education grant (WHEG) program provides need-based grants to resident undergraduates enrolled at UW campuses, Wisconsin Technical College System (WTCS) institutions and tribal colleges. Students enrolled at least half-time are eligible for grants ranging from \$250 to \$1,800 per year for no more than 10 consecutive semesters. Funding for WHEG awards is provided in three separate appropriations within HEAB, one each for UW students, WTCS students and tribal college students. A provision in the 1999-01 budget created a new appropriation for WHEG awards to students attending tribal colleges in Wisconsin. These grants, which are funded with revenues from tribal gaming compacts, replaced grants that had been awarded to tribal college students under the tuition grant program.

The tuition grant (TG) program provides need-based grants to resident undergraduates who attend private, nonprofit postsecondary institutions in Wisconsin. Students enrolled at least half-time are eligible for grants ranging from \$250 to \$2,300 per year for no more than 10 semesters. The award amounts are determined using a statutory formula that relies in part on the amount by which the student's tuition exceeds UW-Madison tuition.

#### **GOVERNOR**

Maintain funding for the WHEG program for UW and WTCS students and the TG program during 2001-03 at the 2000-01 base funding level. The WHEG program for UW students base funding would remain at \$18,900,300 GPR annually, and for WTCS students funding would remain at \$13,201,900 GPR annually. The TG program funding would remain at \$21,038,600 GPR during each year of the 2001-03 biennium.

## DISCUSSION POINTS

1. HEAB currently administers nine, need-based financial aid programs totaling \$58,461,500 GPR. The WHEG and TG programs are the largest of these, accounting for approximately 90.9% of the total amount appropriated in 2000-01. In 1999-00, 9,306 students, or approximately 23% of all undergraduates attending Wisconsin private colleges, received TG awards. WHEG awards were provided to 16,669 UW students (15% of resident undergraduates), 15,173 WTCS students (19% of resident undergraduates enrolled at least half-time) and 299 tribal college students (37.5% of resident undergraduates enrolled at least half-time). The average grant amount was \$1,871 for private college students, \$1,011 for UW students and \$748 for WTCS students.

2. For each program, a different formula is used to distribute the available funds to students. Annually, by April 10, the UW Board of Regents, the WTCS Board, the Wisconsin Association of Independent Colleges and Universities and the two tribal colleges located in the state are each required to submit a proposed formula for the distribution of WHEG and TG grants to students attending their respective institutions for the following academic year. The number of students who will receive awards and the average amount of each award are determined by modifying the various formula factors. HEAB may approve or modify the recommended formulas. At its February 16, 2001, meeting, HEAB approved the formulas for distribution of the 2001-02 grants as recommended by the three sectors and the tribal colleges. Currently, WHEG grants are limited by statute to a minimum of \$250 and a maximum of \$1,800 per academic year, and TG program awards are limited to a minimum of \$250 and a maximum of \$2,300 per year.

3. Attempts are often made to link changes in funding for WHEG and TG programs to changes in tuition. The tuition policy of the Board of Regents asserts that GPR financial aid "should increase at a rate no less than that of tuition while staying commensurate with the increased student budget needs of students attending the UW System." The WTCS Board has not adopted such a policy.

4. The WTCS Board recently approved tuition increases for 2001-02 of 4.8% for students enrolled in postsecondary/vocational adult programs and 4.1% for students enrolled in college parallel programs. Tuition at private colleges in Wisconsin will increase by an average of 5.4% in 2001-02. Increases in UW tuition are determined by the Board of Regents and depend on the level of funding provided in the University's budget and on salary increases provided in the state's compensation plan. While actual UW tuition for 2001-02 will not be approved by the Regents until July 13, UW System staff and the Board of Regents have stated that they do not anticipate double-digit increases in regular tuition. Over the past ten years, UW resident undergraduate tuition has increased an average of approximately 5.5% per year.

5. Increasing WHEG and TG funding by the same percentage as the estimated increase in tuition will not necessarily guarantee that the tuition increase for an individual student will be offset by the financial aid increase. The change in the amount of award due to an increase in program funding depends on a number of factors including the number of eligible students and

adjustments made by HEAB to the formula factors. For example, additional funding provided for a program can be used to increase the number of students receiving awards rather than the average award amount. Further, costs other than tuition, such as room and board, books, transportation and miscellaneous expenses can account for over two-thirds of the cost of attending a UW campus or technical college. At private colleges, however, tuition can equal 75% or more of a student's total educational costs. For resident undergraduate students enrolled at least half-time in degree or certificate programs who filed for financial aid in 1999-00, WHEG and TG grants covered an average of approximately 4% of total costs for UW students, 4.7% for WTCS students and 5.2% for private college students.

6. Despite anticipated increases in tuition, the bill does not increase funding for the WHEG UW and WTCS programs or the TG program. According to staff from the Department of Administration, funding was maintained at 2000-01 levels due primarily to budget constraints. As passed by the Legislature, the 1999-01 budget included increases that corresponded with expected tuition increases over the biennium; however, in past biennia, the increases provided to the WHEG and TG programs have not been tied to tuition increases. This type of link has not been made as a matter of policy, because the Legislature has no control over annual increases in tuition; instead, non-elected boards that govern these institutions (the UW, WTCS and private colleges) make the tuition decisions. Linking these state GPR appropriations to the change in tuition would effectively cede control over these GPR expenditures to the collective decisions of non-elected boards.

7. WHEG funding under 1999 Act 9 was increased for technical college students by 6% annually, while actual tuition at WTCS increased between 3.9% and 6.5% in 1999-00 and between 3.8% and 5.7% in 2000-01. WHEG funding for UW students increased by 9.6% in 1999-00 and 0% in 2000-01, while tuition for resident undergraduates at UW increased 6.9% to 9.6% in 1999-00 and 0% in 2000-01. Funding for the TG program was increased by 7% annually, while average tuition at private colleges increased 5.3% in 1999-00 and 5.8% in 2000-01.

8. In 1999-00, total state-funded financial aid accounted for 12.1% of all need-based financial aid received by Wisconsin undergraduates, while the federal government provided 74.3% of the funds and institutions provided another 11.3%. Consequently, changes in federal funding and formulas have a much greater impact on the financial aid received by a student than changes in state funding.

9. The Bush administration has proposed increasing the budget for Pell grants, the main form of federal aid to college students, by \$1 billion, to \$9.8 billion for federal fiscal year 2001-02, which covers October 1, 2001 through September 30, 2002. Under the proposal, the maximum Pell Grant would be \$3,850, up \$100 from the current year. Since Congress has not yet acted on the administration's proposals, actual changes to federal financial aid programs are not known. Under the previous federal budget bill, the Pell Grant program experienced a 14.6% increase in funding along with a maximum award increase of \$450, and the Supplemental Education Opportunity Grant (SEOG), Federal Work Study (FWS) and Leveraging Education Assistance Partnerships (LEAP) all experienced an increase ranging from 8.2% to 37.5% in FY 01. Under the Bush administration proposal, funding for other student assistance would remain unchanged.

**ALTERNATIVES**

**A. WHEG Program for UW Students**

1. Approve the Governor's recommendation to maintain current law.
2. Provide the following amounts to increase funding for the WHEG program for UW students by the indicated percentages:

	Annual Increase	GPR Funding Change to Bill		
		2001-02	2002-03	Total
a.	1%	\$189,000	\$379,900	\$568,900
b.	2	378,000	763,600	1,141,600
c.	3	567,000	1,151,000	1,718,000
d.	4	756,000	1,542,300	2,298,300
e.	5	945,000	1,937,300	2,882,300
f.	6	1,134,000	2,336,100	3,470,100
g.	7	1,323,000	2,738,600	4,061,600

**B. WHEG Program for WTCS Students**

1. Approve the Governor's recommendation to maintain current law.
2. Provide the following amounts to increase funding for the WHEG program for WTCS students by the indicated percentages:

	Annual Increase	GPR Funding Change to Bill		
		2001-02	2002-03	Total
a.	1%	\$132,000	\$265,300	\$397,300
b.	2	264,000	533,300	797,300
c.	3	396,100	804,000	1,200,100
d.	4	528,100	1,077,300	1,605,400
e.	5	660,100	1,353,200	2,013,300
f.	6	792,100	1,631,700	2,423,800
g.	7	924,100	1,912,900	2,837,000

4.5 = 594,100  
01-02

1,213,950  
02-03



**C. TG Program**

1. Approve the Governor's recommendation to maintain current law.
2. Provide the following amounts to increase funding for the TG program for private college students by the indicated percentages:

	<u>Annual Increase</u>	<u>GPR Funding Change to Bill</u>		
		<u>2001-02</u>	<u>2002-03</u>	<u>Total</u>
a.	1%	\$210,400	\$422,900	\$633,300
b.	2	420,800	850,000	1,270,800
c.	3	631,200	1,281,300	1,912,500
d.	4	841,500	1,716,700	2,558,200
e.	5	1,051,900	2,156,400	3,208,300
f.	6	1,262,300	2,600,400	3,862,700
g.	7	1,472,700	3,048,500	4,521,200

Prepared by: John Stott

2001

Date (time) needed \_\_\_\_\_

LRB b 0715, 1, 1

**AMDT TO BUDGET SUB AMDT**

MJL:WLJ : \_\_\_\_\_

See form **AMENDMENTS — COMPONENTS & ITEMS.**

**SENATE AMENDMENT  
TO ~~SENATE AMENDMENT~~  
TO SENATE SUBSTITUTE AMENDMENT 1,  
TO 2001 SENATE BILL 55**

At the locations indicated, amend the substitute amendment ~~amendment~~ as follows:

~~#. Page . . . . , line . . . . :~~

~~#. Page . . . . , line . . . . :~~

~~#. Page . . . . line . . . . :~~

~~#. Page . . . . , line . . . . :~~

~~#. Page . . . . , line . . . . :~~

~~#. Page . . . . , line . . . . :~~

AMENDMENTS

LRB 6071511

MJL : \_\_\_\_\_

\$\$\$ INCREASE/DECREASE

In the component bar, for a "regular" amendment item:

For the item text, execute: ..... create → item: → m: → \$inc-dec

#. Page 129, line 18: in(~~dec~~)crease the dollar amount for fiscal year 2001-02 by \$ . . . . . 1 , . . . 323 , . . . 000 . and in(~~dec~~)crease the dollar amount for fiscal year 2002-03 by \$ . . . . . 2 , . . . 738 , . . . 600 . to in(~~dec~~)crease funding for the ~~purpose~~ ~~[purposes]~~ for which the appropriation is made, ~~to~~ ~~increase funding for~~ . . . . .

#. Page 129, line 20: in(~~dec~~)crease the dollar amount for fiscal year 2001-02 by \$ . . . . . 594 , . . . 100 . and in(~~dec~~)crease the dollar amount for fiscal year 2002-03 by \$ . . . . . 1 , . . . 215 , . . . 000 . to in(~~dec~~)crease funding for the ~~purpose~~ ~~[purposes]~~ for which the appropriation is made, ~~to~~ ~~increase funding for~~ . . . . .

In the component bar, for a "frozen" amendment item (used in amendments to amendments):

For the item text, execute: ..... create → item: → afterline [or the applicable item]

For the "frozen" item text, execute: create → item: → frz: → m: → \$inc-dec

#. Page 129, line 3: . . . . .

mvr  
#. Page 129, line 11: in(~~dec~~)crease the dollar amount for fiscal year 2001-02 by \$ . . . . . 631 , . . . 200 . and in(~~dec~~)crease the dollar amount for fiscal year 2002-03 by \$ . . . . . 1 , . . . 281 , . . . 300 . to in(~~dec~~)crease funding for the ~~purpose~~ ~~[purposes]~~ for which the appropriation is made, ~~to~~ ~~increase funding for~~ . . . . .

\* Use the 2nd alternative if the purpose of the increase or decrease is more limited than the purpose or purposes of the appropriation as currently shown in the text of ch. 20, stats.

SDC:.....Keckhaver – CN1065, Funding increases for WHEG and TG

FOR 2001-03 BUDGET — NOT READY FOR INTRODUCTION

**CAUCUS SENATE AMENDMENT**

**TO SENATE SUBSTITUTE AMENDMENT 1,**

**TO 2001 SENATE BILL 55**

1           At the locations indicated, amend the substitute amendment as follows:

2           **1.** Page 129, line 3: increase the dollar amount for fiscal year 2001-02 by  
3           \$631,200 and increase the dollar amount for fiscal year 2002-03 by \$1,281,300 to  
4           increase funding for the purpose for which the appropriation is made.

5           **2.** Page 129, line 18: increase the dollar amount for fiscal year 2001-02 by  
6           \$1,323,000 and increase the dollar amount for fiscal year 2002-03 by \$2,738,600 to  
7           increase funding for the purpose for which the appropriation is made.

